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From: Keiran Kennedy [TSY]
Sent: Friday, 19 April 2024 8:36 pm
To: ^Parliament: Simon McLoughlin; ^Parliament: Hamish Dick
Cc: Claire McLellan [TSY]; Jean Le Roux [TSY]; Stacey Wymer [TSY]; Tim Hampton [TSY]; 

Struan Little [TSY]; Caralee McLiesh [TSY]
Subject: Further Detail on PIT Costings - Backpocket

 

Hi Simon and Hamish  
Further to our discussion this afternoon – below are some more detailed backpockets in addition to the content in 
T2024/1082 sent today re PIT costings.  
 
Key Message 
Treasury has updated the PIT costings based on final BEFU forecasts and updated Households Economic Survey 
(HES) data . This updated costing increases the cost of the PIT package (including IWTC increase and IR & MSD 
implementation costs) by an additional $355m OFP. This costing varies from the preliminary costing presented at 
Budget Ministers 4 on 8 April.   
Given the PIT decision is still to go through Cabinet as part of the Budget Cabinet paper, Treasury would 
recommend that the PIT costing in the B24 package be updated for the new costing and reflected in the Budget 
Cabinet paper.  

 
What this updated costing means for the Budget 2024 package? 

• The impact on the Budget 2024 package if this increase to the PIT tax package is added to allowances is 
$269m av per annum under budget allowances  and $23m over allowances in 27/28.  

• Noting that on Monday 15 April, we provided your office with an updated package which included all 
decisions from the weekend and the package was $375m av per annum under allowances and $101m under 
in 27/28. 

• If the Minister wishes to create more headroom in the B24 package, she may need to consider reducing or 
removing an initiative to bring the overall cost of the package down or make some adjustments to your tax 
package parameters. We can provide you with some options for this.  

 
Background to PIT costings 
The PIT package for B24 has 3 main components: the personal income tax threshold changes, the changes to the 
Independent Earner Tax Credit (IETC) and the increase to the in-work-tax-credit (IWTC) 
The PIT costings provided by Treasury (with inputs from IR, MSD and MOE) are for the personal income tax threshold 
changes and the IETC changes. The IWTC costing is provided by IR.  
Treasury always intended to provide updated final costings for the PIT package based on BEFU forecasts and 
updated data - our advice has noted that the PIT costings were preliminary and subject to change.  
 
What is the change in costing? 
The final costing for the PIT package is $10.9 billion (see full breakdown at para 21 in T2024/1082) , an increase of 
$89m pa from the preliminary costings from BM 4. The biggest movement is in the PIT and IETC costings shown 
below:  
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What are the drivers underlying the change in the PIT costings? 

• Treasury has used updated data and updated inputs from MSD and IR to produce the revised PIT costing.  
• The updated data is shifting from the 2021 Households Economic Survey (HES) data and Half Year Economic 

and Fiscal Update 2023 forecasts to the 2023 HES data and final Budget Economic and Fiscal Update 2024 
economic forecasts. Both sets of updated data were available from early April [NB: 2023 HES data was 
available from 8 April; final BEFU forecasts were available from 6 April].  

• The updated Household Economic Survey data showed an increase in the amount of household wage/salary 
income. Greater household income increases the overall cost of any personal income tax relief policy. This 
accounts for around half of the total increase in the cost of the Personal Income Tax package. 

• The other half of the cost increase is owing to the updated economic forecasts resulting in a larger increase 
in NZ Superannuation (NZS) payments from the tax package compared to the status quo. Despite the 
increase in the impact of the tax package, the overall net cost of NZ Superannuation in the Budget Economic 
and Fiscal Update 2024 forecasts was around $1.3 billion lower over the forecast period compared to the 
Half Year Economic and Fiscal Update 2023 forecasts.  

Further detail on the NZS Increase in the PIT costings? 
• NZS rates are set at a gross rate through legislation so a tax threshold change means that NZS recipients 

receive more in their hand because NZS is subject to less tax. This is different for beneficiaries because 
benefit rates are set at a net rate. This means that the PIT tax package has an additional component for the 
extra cost of NZS.  

• There is a further impact via indexation. NZS is increased by CPI annually. The NZS rate is then further 
increased to 66% net av wage (wage floor) if the CPI adjusted rate is not at this level.  The rate is currently 
above the wage floor and under current settings is not forecast to be increased by the wage floor until 1 
April 2026. 

• The tax package increases net average wages. In 2025/26, this causes NZS to be indexed to the wage floor. 
This increases the cost of NZS in 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28, which results in an increase to the cost of 
the tax package.  

 
• The cost of the NZS component of the tax package therefore depends on the difference between the growth 

rate in CPI and the growth rate in net average wages.  
• Both CPI growth and wage growth are lower in the BEFU 2024 economic forecasts compared to the HYEFU 

2023 forecasts, but CPI growth was revised down by more.  
• The gap between CPI growth and wage growth therefore widened, increasing the cost of NZS in the tax 

package.  
 
What this means for Treasury’s fiscal forecasts? 

• Treasurys’s fiscal forecasts will need to reflect the updated costs of the tax policy change to ensure our 
forecasts represent a best esƟmate of the Government's fiscal outlook.  

• If the impact of this cosƟng change is managed against allowances and the overall B24 package sƟll remains 
under $3.5 billion, this would miƟgate any implicaƟons to the OBEGAL track presented in our preliminary 
fiscal forecasts. 
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• NoƟng that Inland Revenue’s revenue forecasts submiƩed to Treasury this week did not include this 
updated cosƟng which means that the Treasury will likely adjust for this cosƟng change centrally.  

 
What was the Tax material presented to B Mins 4 on 8 April? 
For reference here is relevant info on tax that was presented to B Mins 4 on 8 April 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Ngā mihi 
Keiran 
 
Keiran Kennedy (she/her) | Manager, Budget Management | Te Tai Ōhanga – The Treasury 
Mobile:  Email/IM: keiran.kennedy@treasury.govt.nz 
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